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Re: Friends Organization Policy 

Dear Mr. Ashe: 

On October 18,2010 the U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service (Service) released a draft Friends 
Organization Policy (633 FW 1-4) for a 45 day public review and comment period (75 
FR 63851). That comment period was reopened for an additional 30 days on March 9, 
2011 (76 FR 12990). The Citizens' Advisory Commission on Federal Areas submitted 
comments during the initial review period. A copy of those comments is enclosed. We 
are writing today to inquire about the status of the final policy. 

We are also requesting copies of any interim policy guidelines or directives which may 
have been provided to individual refuges or regional offices to guide their work with 
Friends organizations pending release of the final policy. Even in the absence of a final 
policy, we would expect that some level of policy guidance is necessary to ensure that the 
relationships and interactions between Service staff and the more than 200 Friends 
organizations are both transparent and fully consistent with the provisions of the National 
Wildlift Refuge System Administration Act of 1966, the Refuge Recreation Act of 1962, the 
National Wildlife Refuge System Volunteer and Community Partnership Act of 1998, or 
other relevant statutes. 

In our previous comments on the draft policy, the Commission expressed concerns about 
the potential for conflicts of interest between Friends organizations and Service staff. The 
likelihood of a conflict increases when a Service employee is also a member of a Friends 
group. While we understand membership is permitted, Service employees must be careful 
to avoid any appearance of conflict between the employee's responsibilities to the Service 
and their membership in a Friends group. Our comments on the draft policy outlined 
some of the potential conflicts we have identified in Alaska. With no final policy yet in 
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place or any other guidance of which we are aware, the Commission is uncertain if those 
potential conflicts have been addressed by the Service. 

The Fall 2012 newsletter of Friends of Alaska National Wildlife Refuges has an article 
entitled Volunteers Support Refoge Operations. The article outlines a number of refuge 
projects volunteers worked on in 2012. As an organization also consisting of volunteers, 
this Commission applauds the efforts of Friends of Alaska Wildlife Refuges and its 
members in support of refuge projects. 

We understand that one way the Service provides support to Friends groups is by offering 
specialized training at no cost to volunteers. The newsletter article encourages members 
to take advantage of the "free" classes offered by the Service. As we all know, however, 
the classes are not free. They are paid for with taxpayer dollars and other public funds 
appropriated to the FWS. Use of public funds to support the activities of a private 
organization, even when the agency benefits, further emphasizes the need for clear policy 
guidance on the relationship between the Service and Friends groups. 

Clear guidance becomes even more important when a Friends group, which includes 
Service employees as members, takes an advocacy role on a proposed management action, 
proposed legislation or other Service proposal. We have seen an example of this in 
Alaska. Friends of Alaska National Wildlife Refuges, which includes advocacy "through 
outreach to decision makers" in its mission statement has advocated strongly against a 
land exchange in Izembek National Wildlife Refuge. At the same time, some of its 
members are Service employees involved to varying degrees in both the preparation of the 
draft environmental impact statement analyzing the proposed exchange and in making 
decisions related to the exchange. While we have no knowledge of any improper 
behavior, this involvement increases the possibility, as well as the public perception, that a 
conflict of interest may exist or an abuse of authority could occur. 

This Commission appreciates your attention to our request for an update on the status of a 
final Friends policy and our request for information on any interim guidance provided to 
Service staff. Please contact our office if there are questions. 

cc: Governor Sean Parnell 
Senator Lisa Murkowski 
Senator Mark Begich, 
Congressman Don Young 

Sincerely 

~L~u-
Stan Leaphart 
Executive Director 

Commissioner Cora Campbell, ADF&G 
Commissioner Dan Sullivan, ADNR 
Geoffrey Haskett, Alaska Region USFWS 
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